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The 1-1/2-story brick and log dwelling located at 16421 Broadfording Road in Hagerstown,
Washington County, MD is part of an 18th and 19th-century mill complex, known alternatively
as Broadfording Mills, Union Mills, and/or Hartranft’s Mills. The property is eligible for
listing on the National Register under Criteria A and C.

The Broadfording Mills complex is located just south of Broadfording Road along the west bank
of the Conococheage Creek. The mill complex includes a 1-1/2-story log dwelling and its
large brick addition; a frame bank barn; a frame school house; and remains of the mill
itself. The property at 16421 consists of the 1-1/2-story log dwelling and the two-story
brick addition. According to local tradition, and not inconsistent with the architecture,
_the log house was constructed ca. 1762. The log structure is clad with vertical board siding
d covered with a gable roof with a substantial brick end chimney. The brick addition,
.cected in two separate phases during the mid-19th century, is built into the hillside on an
elevated foundation and rises 1-1/2 to three stories in height. This addition extends seven
bays long and is covered with a saltbox, or asymmetrical gable roof with bargeboard detailing
in the gable ends and three gable dormers in the front slope. Although the mill is no longer
standing, its foundations remain, showing its location and relationship to the other
buildings on the site.

According to the MHT inventory form on the property, Broadfording Mills is significant for
its architecture, for its association with the milling industry and for its proximity to the
Broadfording Road, a major 18th-century corridor to the west which past through this complex
until its route was changed to the present location just north of the buildings. Grist and
saw milling were major industries in Washington County in the 18th and 19th centuries as a
result of ample water power. The mills offered farmers a means of processing their grain as
well as providing a community center.

The property at 16421 Broadfording Road forms a central part of the mill center and is
eligible for listing on the National Register under Criterion A. Further, the log dwelling
and the brick addition illustrate vernacular building traditions of the period and survive
as a good example of a miller’s house. The property is eligible for listing on the National
Register under Criterion C.

Documentation on the property/district is presented in:Review and Compliance Files

Prepared by:MHT form prepared by Paula Stoner [Dickey], Consultant, June 1976; Request for
Historic Property Review prepared by Eileen Hagan, May 24, 1996.

Kimberly Prothro Williams June 10, 1996
Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date
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The Broadfording Mills property containing
a log house, brick house, mill ruins, a frame bank
barn and school house is significant for its archi-
tecture, for its association with the milling indus-
try and with history of education in Washington Co-
unty. The farm also derives importance from its prox-
imity to the Broadfording Road, a major 18th century
corridor to the West which passed through this complex
until its route was changed to the present location
just north of the buildings.
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DESCRIPTION
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This complex of buildings, known as Broadfording Mills is located just south of Broadfording
Road along the west bank of the Conococheague Creek in Washington County, Maryland. Inclu-
ded in the group of buildings is a one story frame school which has been converted to a
dwelling, a one and a half story log dwelling, a two story brick house, a frame bank barn
and the foundation walls of the mill. A now abandoned section of Broadfording Road runs
between the buildings and the creek. Originally it continued to intersect with the present
road west of the mill complex.

Along the entrance lane to this property, situated on a relatively level area of ground, is
a one story three bay frame building formerly used as the Broadfording School house. Shea-
thed with German siding, it has six over six light windows flanked with pairs of shutters
with two low relief panels. Small brick chimneys extend from inside each gable end. A shed
roofed porch shelters the central entrance.

The log house is situated on sloping ground and faces southwest. Having been renovated, its
northwest and northeast elevations are sheathed with board and batten siding. The log walls
are exposed at other elevations where 'V" notched corner joining can be observed. A two part
structure, the house is four bays in length and is divided nearly in half by an interior log
wall. Most windows have modern applied trim and shutters. Shed roofed dormers have been
added to the front and rear slopes of the roof. The main entrance to this house with a ~ or
having six raised panels trimmed with quarter round, appears to be original. A brick ch_ .-
ney rises from the interior of the house at the location of the inside log wall.

The brick dwelling in this complex is located just south of the log house. It, too, is situ=-
ated on a slope and faces southeagt. The structure is a two and one half story seven bay
brick building set on low fieldstone foundations. The eastern four bays of the front ele-
vation are recessed under a deep porch which is included under the main roof span. A one
story two bay frame ell sheathed with board and batten siding extends to the rear or north-
west, A small frame structure with German siding is attached to the southwest end wall.

Both gable walls of the house are brick. The front and rear walls of the northeastern sec-
tion of the house, however, are sheathed with wood. At the front elevation German siding is
employed and at the rear board and batten is used. All brick walls display common bonding
with, generally, six rows of stretchers between header courses. Most windows are topped with
flat brick arches.

Narrow window frames with mitered corners are finished with a bead at the inside edge. The
northeastern part of the house has nine over six light double hung sashes at the main story
level while six over sgix sashes are used at the upper story and in all windows of the south-
western part of the house. Three gabled dormers which appear to be original extend from the
southeastern slope of the roof. Most windows are flanked with pairs of three panel shutters.

The roof is covered with sheet metal and is finighed with a scroll cut barge board which ex-
tends along the front elevation as part of the eaves trim. Moderately large brick chimneys
with several courses of corbeling at their tops are located inside each gable end and at the
interior of the houge. A large exterior brick chimney matching the others stands at the -nd
of the board and batten wing.

Entrances in the front elevation are located in the second, fifth and seventh bays from the
south corner of the house. Doors are located at the ground and main stories in the second

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
(Continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Broadfording Mills property containing a log house, brick house, mill ruins, a frame bank
barn and school house is significant for its architecture, for its association with the
milling industry and with history of education in Washington County. The farm also derives
importance from its proximity to the Broadfording Road, a major 18th century corridor to the
West which passed through this complex until its route was changed to the present location
just north of the buildings.

The architectural significance of this complex is derived from several periods of vernacular
building which are represented in thisg grouping. According to local tradition the log house
dates from the 18th century. One historian specified the date 1762. The brick dwelling is an
upusual structure which may have been built in two parts. Most exterior detail and trim would
a, ar to date from the second quarter of the 19th century. The bank barn also represents a
major vernacular type in the region.

Although the mill is no longer standing, its foundations remain, showing its location and re-
lationship to other buildings on the tract. Grist and saw milling were major industries in
Washington County during the 18th and 19th centuries ag a result of ample water power. The
mills offered farmers a means of processing their grain as well as providing a community cen-
ter. Many County roads were developed as routes to mills which were often located near for-
ding places along creeks.

The school building was owned by the Board of County School Commissioners from 1869 until 1938
(226/490). 1Its presence at this location attests to the significance of a mill as being a

rural communtiy center. The small school house is important for its contribution to education
in the County.

The earliest deed record which relates to this property is a transaction in which John Rentch
Jonas Hogmire and Daniel Rentch sold a 50 acre tract "Do Little", which was part of the estate
of Andrew Rentch, deceased, to Richard Cromwell and Jacob Zeller on July 26, 1794 (H/888).

The price of the land was B3,125,6p. per acre. Andrew Rentch had vast land holdings in Wash-
ington County and did not live on this tract. "Do Little" was initially surveyed for John
Lewis on November 3, 1743, (Patent Volume 1, Page 347).

John Zeller continued to acquire land along the Conococheague Creek in a variety of transac-
tions during the late 18th and early 19th centuries. On July 1, 1812, John Zeller and Nathan
Crgrlxwell had "Do Little part of "White Oak Bottom" and a contiguous vacancy resurveyed into
a et called "Union Millsg" containing 87 1/2 acres. Adjoining this to form a larger prop-
erty were 'Waggon Ford" and "Hard Times". In 1819, Nathan Cromwell sold his one half interest
in these tracts to Jacob Zeller for $7,500, (DD/701). The property remained in the Zeller
family except for a brief period when owned by Jacob Miller, until 1854 when Oliver Zeller and

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
(Continued)
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY ___ 98.40 acres

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY -
EB1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Paula Stoner Dickey, Consultant
ORGANIZATION DATE
Washington County Historical Sites Survey June 1976
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
County Office Building, 33 West Washington Street 791-3065
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Hagerstown Maryland 21740

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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bay where they are protected by a large two story gable roofed portico.
Behind the house is a log outbuilding or smoke house.

Other buildings on the property include an animal shelter composed of the
foundation walls of the Broadfording Mill which was located on this land,
and a frame bank barn with decorative metal ventilators attached to its
roof. Portions of the mill race can still be seen.

Buildings on this 98.40 acre tract appear to be in fair to excellent con-
dition.
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John Zeller sold the mill property to John Wachtell, (OHW1/142, IN8/691).
During the remainder of the 19th century, the mill was owned under the
Fiery, Spickler, Hartranft, Crum and Eavey names respectively. It changed
hands numerous times during the 20th century being purchased by Donald E.
and Helen B. Fox in 1955. (94/685, 118/86, 119/286. 130/269, 154/527, 159/
270, 161/616, 183/40, 227/71).
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